Collective Worship Guidance

Advice for community and non faith-based schools

Contents

Definitions - What Collective Worship is and what it isn't	3
What 'wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character' means.	3
The Law – legal requirements including a short section on the right to withdraw.	3
How Collective worship can /should be educational	4
Should it be 'worship'?	4
Developing a Collective Worship Policy	5
A Model Policy for Collective Worship	5
Planning - How can Collective Worship be planned effectively?	8
inking SMSC to Collective Worship	9
inking British Values to Collective Worship	10
Guide for Staff leading Collective Worship	11
Reflection time as part of Collective Worship	11
Web-based resources for Collective Worship	13
Monitoring, Evaluating and Reviewing Collective Worship	14
nviting Visitors to lead Collective worship	14
Appendix 1 - Collective Worship Pupil/Staff Planning Sheet	16
Appendix 2 - Guidance for Visitors (do feel free to photocopy this)	17

Definitions - What Collective Worship is and what it isn't

Collective worship:

- is an educational activity students should be engaged in and challenged by the process
- involves pupils of any faith and none as a school is a community of people holding different beliefs is inclusive
- is a statutory daily activity not necessarily all together and not at the same time but in a variety of different ways
- must be 'wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character' except in schools with a religious character.
- has a reflective element running through it

Collective Worship:

- is different from assembly e.g. not a time for notices.
- is not an attempt to convert people to a religion or worldview
- is different from corporate or church worship which is the shared experience of people belonging to a particular faith or denomination
- is not a platform for views to be imposed on others

Opportunities should be provided to:

- celebrate together
- think deeply (reflect/meditate/worship/pray) together
- Hear wisdom from Christianity and other faith traditions and world views
- build community and foster a corporate identity
- affirm the individual, the community and share common values
- encourage a reflective approach to living
- deepen every individual's capacity for emotional responses
- look beyond the material and the physical
- share experiences and possibilities of the transcendent

What 'wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character' means.

- 'Broadly Christian' means reflecting the broad traditions of Christian beliefs, without being distinctively of any particular denomination.
- Schools with a religious character are the only schools permitted to offer corporate 'faith' worship, and they will normally work to ensure that this is also an educational experience which makes a contribution to pupils' Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural development (SMSC)

The Law – legal requirements including a short section on the right to withdraw.

Collective worship

- has been a legal requirement in maintained schools since 1944 and for academies and free schools, is set out in their funding agreement.
- must be provided for every pupil, every day, unless they are withdrawn by their parents
- is not part of the taught curriculum time of the school

- is specific in terms of content, i.e.: the majority of acts of collective worship in a term must be 'wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character' except in schools with a religious character
- can take place at any time of the school day, in any place within the school and with any age or school grouping of pupils

How Collective worship can /should be educational

In community schools, collective worship must have an educational purpose and should:

- be appropriate to the age, aptitude and family background of pupils
- contribute to pupils' spiritual, moral, social and cultural development
- supplement themes that children are already encountering through the curriculum

Collective worship provides opportunities for pupils and staff in the school to reflect together on:

- What is important in life
- What it means to be human
- exploring a range of beliefs and ideas and how the behaviour of some people gives an example of the best a human can become
- Ideas of right and wrong applying these to current personal, school and external issues
- How people live and work together as communities, both in school and beyond
- Ways in which people in different places and times have experienced, responded to and expressed these issues and values

Should it be 'worship'?

- Providing the opportunity is not the same as expecting everyone to worship and a response does not have to be a faith response.
- For pupils with a faith, it is about giving them a chance to reflect on explore the topic being considered within the faith aspect of their lives.
- For those who do not, it is an opportunity to reflect on and develop their own beliefs and values.
- There should be no expectation that children will pray

This educational purpose should inform clear principles about how collective worship is provided in schools.

Developing a Collective Worship Policy

A policy for Collective Worship (CW) should set out the school's basic approach to CW; the legal context in which the worship is organised (including a note about the right of withdrawal); the purpose and educational value of CW as the school sees it; the components of acts of CW, and the way in which the school will monitor and evaluate its CW.

You will wish to set out in some way the organisational details of your worship pattern. Things like like times of day, groupings, themes and leadership. Such details are not, strictly speaking matters of policy; they are day to day organisational matters which will change from time to time. You might wish to include them in the policy document or you may prefer to set them down in an appendix which can then be changed easily without reviewing the whole policy

There now follows a model policy. This will serve to expand on the general areas outlined above and also provide ways of expressing them which might be useful. You'll also find fuller details of the legalities elsewhere in this guidance. There is no requirement to stick to the wording set out here and in your particular context you may feel that there are some other important aspects of CW which you'd want to be sure to include.

A Model Policy for Collective Worship

1. Basic approach to Collective Worship

- 1.1 Gathering for Collective Worship is central to the life of any school community and xxxxx school embraces the legal requirement for all registered pupils to participate in an act of Collective Worship on each school day. It is a time where the whole school, or groups within the school, meet together to consider and reflect on common concerns, issues and interests. It is something which is separate from ordinary school activities and which draws a response from pupils. It is a profound and unifying moment which gives pupils space to develop a reflective approach to life, and to learn to express those reflections.
- 1.2 Collective Worship is an inclusive enterprise which seeks to engage and provide for all members of the school community. Collective Worship is wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character and it is respectful of the variety of religious traditions (including 'no religion') of the pupils; it makes no assumptions about their personal commitments and will not seek to coerce them or require a response which is anything other than freely given. Collective Worship is not the same as the 'corporate' worship of adherents of a particular faith, in which all participants have chosen freely to be present and share basic assumptions and commitments.
- 2. Legal provisions and responsibilities for Collective Worship (See the Education Reform Act 1988 and DfES circular 1/94)
- 2.1 All registered pupils must participate in an act of collective worship in school each day unless withdrawn by their parents. Worship may take place at any time of day and in varied groupings of pupils.
- 2.2 In any one term, acts of worship will be 'wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character'. That is, most (or all) of the acts of worship must reflect the broad traditions of Christian belief without being distinctive of any one Christian denomination. Worship which is broadly Christian includes some elements which relate specifically to the traditions of Christian belief and which accord a special status to Jesus Christ and his teachings. This means that most school worship should reflect Christian beliefs, not necessarily Christian worship practices. It is not necessary for every act of worship to be wholly or broadly Christian;
- 2.3 Collective Worship will have regard to the family backgrounds, ages and aptitudes of the pupils;
- 2.4 Teachers are entitled to withdraw from participation in Collective Worship on grounds of conscience;
- 2.5 The responsibility for arranging Collective Worship rests with the Headteacher after consultation with the Local Governing Body.

Withdrawal of pupils from Collective Worship

- 2.6 Parents have the right to withdraw their children from Collective Worship should they wish to do so. Any parents who wish to withdraw their children from Collective Worship should submit their request to the Headteacher. The Headteacher will meet with the parents in order to ensure that they are aware of the Collective Worship Policy and Programme and its intention to be open to and respectful of all pupils' personal beliefs.
- 2.7 The decision to withdraw the pupil remains with the parents and they are not required to give any reason for withdrawal. The parents should state whether it is their wish that the pupil is withdrawn from all Collective Worship or from specific acts of worship only. It is for the school to arrange supervision of any pupils withdrawn; though not to provide extra teaching or to incur extra cost. If parents who choose to withdraw pupils from Collective Worship wish to provide material from another religious tradition for their children to read while withdrawn they may do so.

3. The Purpose, Value and Characteristics of Collective Worship

- 3.1 Collective Worship enables pupils to engage with and embrace the school's ethos and to celebrate the shared values and concerns of the school community; it promotes pupils' spiritual, moral, social and cultural development; it enables pupils to experience the place of worship and reflection in the lives of religious believers; to ponder the big questions of life, and to hear alternative approaches to them.
- 3.2 Collective worship will be characterised by the following:
 - A shared sense of belonging through drawing the school community together to celebrate the values and ethos of the school;
 - A shared sense of wonder and awe and an appreciation of the transcendent which, for some pupils will be identified with God;
 - A shared concern for the needs of others locally, nationally and globally;
 - A shared insight about the varied aspects of life and death and the ability to foster empathy for others;
 - A shared opportunity to reflect on the wisdom; spiritual traditions, and writings of religious and nonreligious belief systems;
 - The experience of being a part of a caring community and the confidence and trust to explore ideas and reflections;
 - The opportunity for celebration, thanksgiving and sharing emotional experiences and time to share successes and failures in personal, school and community life;
 - An opportunity for reflection on the fundamental questions of life, including such things as creativity, diversity, meaning, change and death and focus attention away from the concerns of the moment to those things which are of eternal concern to human beings;
 - An opportunity for pupils to experience 'spirituality' by enabling them to develop a worshipful
 attitude as demonstrated by feelings such as awe and wonder, elation, appreciation, gratitude,
 respect, reverence, trepidation, failure, forgiveness and of being uplifted;
 - An opportunity to begin to shape and articulate personal beliefs and spirituality;
 - Opportunities for pupils to develop an enquiring mind and express and explore their own views openly and honestly;
 - Opportunities for pupils to foster an awareness of the world around them and a sense of their place within it;
 - An opportunity to hear from visitors to the school (eg Clergy and representatives of other religious traditions). Visitors will always be briefed clearly on what to expect and what is asked of them and advised about how to make their contribution effective;

- An opportunity to reflect through use of a variety of resources, among them: story, drama, music, art, ICT, video material, artefacts.
- 3.3 The following may be described as Christian elements of collective worship:
 - Using the Bible as a source of knowledge and inspiration for themes and stories;
 - Observing the cycle of the Church's Year Advent, Christmas, Lent, Easter, Pentecost, Harvest and Saints Days;
 - Learning and saying Christian prayers from a number of sources, for example, the Lord's Prayer and the Grace;
 - Singing a wide variety of Christian hymns and songs;
 - Experiencing Christian symbolism in worship and reflecting on its meaning e.g. cross, crucifix, bread and wine and candles;
 - Using prayer, silence and reflection;
 - Celebrating the Eucharist/Holy Communion;
 - Welcoming Clergy and others form the school's Parish Church and other Christian communities.

4 Implementation

4.1 The content of Acts of Worship will be carefully planned and structured with reference to school determined themes and resources, regular community events; the Christian calendar; national commemorations etc. and also with a view to making links with classroom Religious Education.

[Either here or in an Appendix you should set out themes and practical arrangements as well as information about who takes responsibility for organising Collective Worship.]

5 Monitoring and Evaluation

5.1 Regular monitoring and evaluation of Collective Worship will take place. This will include recording of the content of Acts of Worship and an initial assessment of its effectiveness; observations by the worship co-ordinator, and gathering the views and responses of pupils and, where relevant, parents and other stakeholders.

Planning - How can Collective Worship be planned effectively?

Planning of collective worship across each school year should ensure coverage is 'wholly or mainly broadly Christian' in character and allow for a consideration of a range of themes and content.

In organising collective worship schools need to consider:

- when it is held and its duration
- who is to lead worship
- the number of pupils and the age of pupils involved
- the size of the room or hall
- the flexible grouping or seating of pupils
- the budget available
- the involvement of outside agencies, members of the community, and other visitors lead worship
- how will it be monitored.

Good Collective Worship planning supports:

- those who prepare and deliver collective worship
- the conceptualisation and development of ideas and themes
- progression and avoids unhelpful repetition
- a variety of styles and presentation and kinaesthetic learning
- links to the wider curriculum
- participation and leadership by the pupils and involvement with the wider community
- monitoring and evaluation

A 3 or 4 year collective worship plan can be repeated because the pupils—being older - will encounter the same materials again in a different way. If the material used is good then it will stand being repeated after 3 or 4 years when the pupils are more mature.

As with all curriculum planning there should be:

- A long term outline/plan which includes the themes for each half term (usually). This is most useful if it includes
 a context/intended learning outcome for the unit. The long term themes can be linked to the school's values
 and vision which will be consistent with the legal requirement for the collective worship to be "broadly
 Christian"
- A medium term plan that identifies for each week (or fortnight) a sub-theme that develops the overall theme
 progressively and re-visits these ideas from different perspectives which reinforces the learning.
- Daily planning —as planning for each act of collective worship is collected this will build into a useful resource British Values and annual festivals should be recognised and celebrated through collective worship themes and sessions.

For further information on suitable resources for collective worship the school can consult local advisers to SACRE.

Linking SMSC to Collective Worship

Ofsted reports on Collective Worship within the context of Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural development. Inspectors assess the extent of the support and enhancement of the corporate life of the school and the importance of celebrating that which is worthy and good within the school.

The following accounts of what is involved in promoting pupils' spiritual, moral, social and cultural development are as suggestions for schools to adapt as they wish and ensure that they are shared as part of Collective Worship times.

Defining spiritual, moral, social and cultural development

- 1. The spiritual development of pupils is shown by their:
 - ability to be reflective about their own beliefs, religious or otherwise, that inform their perspective on life and their interest in and respect for different people's faiths, feelings and values
 - sense of enjoyment and fascination in learning about themselves, others and the world around them
 - use of imagination and creativity in their learning
 - willingness to reflect on their experiences.
- 2. The moral development of pupils is shown by their:
 - ability to recognise the difference between right and wrong and to readily apply this understanding in their own lives, recognise legal boundaries and, in so doing, respect the civil and criminal law of England
 - understanding of the consequences of their behaviour and actions
 - interest in investigating and offering reasoned views about moral and ethical issues and ability to understand and appreciate the viewpoints of others on these issues.
- 3. The social development of pupils is shown by their:
 - use of a range of social skills in different contexts, for example working and socialising with other pupils, including those from different religious, ethnic and socio-economic backgrounds
 - willingness to participate in a variety of communities and social settings, including by volunteering,
 cooperating well with others and being able to resolve conflicts effectively
 - acceptance and engagement with the fundamental British values of democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of those with different faiths and beliefs; they develop and demonstrate skills and attitudes that will allow them to participate fully in and contribute positively to life in modern Britain.
- 4. The cultural development of pupils is shown by their:
 - understanding and appreciation of the wide range of cultural influences that have shaped their own heritage and those of others
 - understanding and appreciation of the range of different cultures within school and further afield as an essential element of their preparation for life in modern Britain
 - knowledge of Britain's democratic parliamentary system and its central role in shaping our history and values, and in continuing to develop Britain
 - willingness to participate in and respond positively to artistic, musical, sporting and cultural opportunities
 - interest in exploring, improving understanding of and showing respect for different faiths and cultural diversity and the extent to which they understand, accept, respect and celebrate diversity, as shown by their tolerance and attitudes towards different religious, ethnic and socio-economic groups in the local, national and global communities.

Source: p40 – p41 'Ofsted: School Inspection Handbook', September 2018

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/730127/School_inspection_handbook_section_5_270718.pdf

Linking British Values to Collective Worship

British values can play an important role in education and how well a school promotes such values is an aspect of <u>Ofsted's inspection process</u>. British values are promoted in so much of what a school does in line with their ethos, school values and aims. Schools can use assemblies and *collective worship* sessions to address how *British values* are relevant to all pupils.

The British Values are:

- democracy
- the rule of law
- individual liberty
- mutual respect
- · tolerance of those of different faiths and beliefs

It is good to consider promoting each of these five aspects in Collective Worships across the course of a year and should be considered when planning the long term themes. For example:

Autumn 1	Autumn 2	Spring 1	Spring 2	Summer 1	Summer 2
What are British	Democracy	The Rule of Law	Individual	Mutual Respect	Tolerance of
Values?	Pupil Voice	Understanding	Liberty	Care, share and	those with
Children to		why we have	Making Choices	listen to others.	different faiths
create child		laws. Keeping		How do our	
speak British		safe and secure.		words affect	
values and		What happens		others?	
displayed		when rules are			
around school.		broken?			

As well as actively promoting British values, the opposite also applies: where schools should actively challenge pupils, staff or parents expressing opinions contrary to fundamental British values, including 'extremist' views.

The term 'British values' might be slightly misleading in that these values are integral to so many countries throughout the world – they differ in no way from the values of most western European countries, for example.

Schools are subject to a duty (Section 26, Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015) to have "due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism". This duty is known as the Prevent duty. At the foot of this page there is some information to support parents in discussions about extremism and preventing radicalisation.

Guide for Staff leading Collective Worship

When delivering Collective Worship consider the following points:

- Collective worship should usually last between 10 15minutes
- There should be a formal beginning and ending to the worship these don't have to be the standard phrases but children should recognise that something special has begun and ended.
- Collective worships should include a variety of audio, visual and kinaesthetic learning opportunities. Multimedia resources are a brilliant way of hooking children in.
- Engage with the pupil's age, ability and concerns. Avoid explaining the moral of any story but support the children in thinking and making decisions for themselves.
- Child participation, whether this be them reading, acting, holding things up or pupils answering questions, it is still a great way of engaging pupils in the worship it is not always appropriate but do try to involve pupils wherever possible.
- Focus one idea and avoid overcomplicating or deviating from it; include a link between the theme and the content to Christianity or another major religion. Link to the wider school values and curriculum.
- Be inclusive and don't assume or impose ideas, values or beliefs. Use inclusive phrases like "Most Muslims/Buddhists believe..." "Some Christians believe that..." "I am going to read a prayer so please listen carefully to the words. Those who wish to can join in with the Amen at the end." In this way pupils are not joining in prayers against their will but listen respectfully and possibly think about the prayer.
- Singing this is a good opportunity for all to join in and for pupils to have a little stretch during an act of worship (sitting on the floor is not that comfortable)
- Class or year group collective worships are an opportunity to look further into the topic of the week give the pupils a chance to share their understanding
- Consider the environment that the worship is taking place in light levels, how the pupils are sat (lines, circle, disorderly pile...)
- Ensure that pupils have an opportunity to reflect, either through prayer or a time of structured silence.
- Evaluate the collective worship consider what the impact on the children is and how it was received. As part of monitoring collective worship ensure that you have considered pupil voice.

Make it clear – one point

Make it interesting – have a hook

Make it relevant – apply it

Reflection time as part of Collective Worship

There must be a time of silent prayer/reflection during the collective worship time for it to comply with legal requirements. Pupils must be allowed to respond in ways that are appropriate to them. In the Poole and

Bournemouth area there are children from a huge number of faiths, and relatively few withdrawals. The leader of the collective worship must respect the variety of faiths and therefore mainly Christian based prayer is not always suitable. We cannot pressurise children into praying, therefore you need to think of different strategies to introduce this part of the collective worship.

The leader should make it clear when the time to be silent has come. This can be done in a number of ways:

- The leader can say 'I am going to say a prayer from the..... faith now and I want you to listen and think about what I am saying'
- 'I am going to say some words found in the inspirational writings of the...... community which I want you to think about quietly'
- 'Now, while we are quiet, I would like you to listen to the words of a well-known prayer'
- 'I would like you to either say a quiet prayer now or think quietly about what we have heard this morning'
- Pupils could be trained that a gong, chime or Indian bells are an indication of the beginning and end of a time of silent reflection
- Lighting a candle could also be a sign that this is a time of silent reflection
- Using a suitable image displayed on a projector screen for pupils to focus on.

Different faith communities pray in different ways and in different positions, telling pupils to close their eyes and put their hands together may therefore not be suitable. It may be better to tell children to sit quietly and comfortably and to suggest that it may help to either close their eyes or focus on a visual aid you have chosen. It should be remembered that it is the private response of each participant that constitutes the worship and not the repetition of prayers or the use of a particular deity's name. If each person has the opportunity to make their own response then no one is excluded by their religious or nonreligious attitudes.

Monitoring, Evaluating and Reviewing Collective Worship

Self-evaluation helps you to focus on an aspect of school life and as a community to set shared goals. Internal self-evaluation should be a built-in and on-going process which staff and pupils are happy to use, and which they believe will bring benefits and enhanced performance leading to school improvement. Evaluation can take place at any time.

Inviting Visitors to lead Collective worship

It's good to invite visitors, having a range of different CW leaders can bring a richness and diversity to your worship and it's a good way of engaging with the local community too. Visitors who are from committed faith communities can speak to the pupils from the perspective of faith and provide living examples of what it means to adhere to that faith; welcoming a visitor from a minority faith can be really affirming for pupils of that faith. You might welcome people from local Churches and other faith communities; Governors; Councillors, or representatives of one of the groups that bring their prepared acts of worship to schools. As you get to know them you'll discover who's good at it and over time you can develop fruitful relationships. It's important that parents are kept informed about visitors to worship and also that best safeguarding practice is adhered to rigorously.

It's important to prepare well for welcoming a visitor. That means ensuring that the visitor is clear about what they're being asked to do and how the practical arrangements will be shared out. It's also important to ensure that the school community is ready to welcome them.

The school needs to ensure that:-

- the visitor is clearly briefed about a range of matters (see below)
- there is agreement about provision of resources (especially ICT visitor's laptop or memory stick?)
- there is agreement on whether or not the visitor will be leading prayers; choosing songs and other music etc.
- the visitor is greeted on arrival and shown the arrangements
- the visitor is correctly addressed
- that pupils listen attentively and respectfully
- that sensitivity is shown towards artefacts the visitor may bring
- that the visitor is not leading the entire worship alone (though this may be appropriate as a deeper relationship develops)
- that the visitor is thanked publicly
- that the visitor is offered refreshment, expenses and feedback
- that a letter or email of thanks is sent, perhaps from pupils!

The visitor needs to be politely briefed on the following:

- An explanation of the nature of CW and in particular the difference between the 'collective' worship of a school and the 'corporate' worship of a faith community. This involves such things as understanding how to introduce prayers (ie NOT 'put your hands together and close your eyes' but something like 'let's be ready for prayer (or quiet time)' NOT 'let us pray' but something like 'l'm going to say a Christian prayer and if you would like to you may make it your own by saying 'Amen'); care to avoid proselytising; care to avoid using language that makes assumptions about the faith of the pupils.
- An outline of the school's approach to worship. This might, for instance involve a statement about the important place of worship in the life of the school and the fact that high quality educational provision is no less important in worship than it is in the classroom. It might involve explaining about diversity and

inclusivity, and about other aspects of the school's ethos which the worship should reflect. It might include a warning about inadvertently using language which criticises other traditions, or aspects of the life of the school.

- The theme of the proposed worship and information about how it might fit in with other acts of worship in that week or term.
- Particular subject matter appropriate for the specific act of worship.
- The age of the pupils
- The length of the worship and the importance of being disciplined about timing.

"The National Association of Teachers of Religious Education" has produced a Code of Practice for religious believers visiting schools. It is entitled ""Voices of Faith and Belief in Schools - Guidance and a Code of Conduct". You can find this fuller guidance on their website - www.natre.org.uk/ and you may wish to draw the attention of visitors to it.

In Appendix 2 you'll find a photocopiable sheet which you can use, if you wish, to give to visitors.

Appendix 1 - Collective Worship Pupil/Staff Planning Sheet

Planning the message	5 - 5				
	The conference of				
Date:	Theme for the week:				
People responsible for leading:					
Key message or aim for this collective worship:					
Sharing the message (choose from the following sti	mulus)				
Symbols/pictures/artwork to show and talk about:					
Music to play (including entrance/exit music):					
Song to sing?					
, ,					
Story/poem to share:					
Activity (quiz/game/drama):					
Bible text to share:					
bible text to share.					
Receiving the message					
Reflection time:					
Prayer?					
Evaluating the worship					
What was the impact?					
Pupil voice?					

Appendix 2 - Guidance for Visitors (do feel free to photocopy this)

XXXXXX School - Some guidelines for Visitors leading Collective Worship

Welcome to our school and thank you for leading collective worship, we hope this guidance will help you.

School Collective Worship is different from corporate worship in faith communities Pupils and staff come from a variety of backgrounds; from different religions and from no religion at all. Please don't assume that they share your belief. They may have limited knowledge of Christianity, Jesus or Bible stories. This doesn't mean they know nothing and some may be knowledgeable about other religious traditions.

We would like you to share your beliefs and understanding but do not evangelise. If you express personal beliefs make it clear that it's what you believe, or what Christians (or Humanists or Jews etc) believe. Don't suggest that it is objectively the case or what 'everyone' believes.

Take care when saying prayers. Don't assume that it will be appropriate for everyone to adopt the same posture (eg 'hands together and eyes closed') for prayer. If you say 'Let us pray' that rather suggests that everyone will be sharing in it in the same way and this may not be the case. Instead you might like to say that you will be saying a Christian (or other) prayer and that pupils are invited to say 'Amen' if they wish to do so.

Don't assume pupils will accept religious answers to human questions but encourage them to think about them. Pupil's understanding can be enriched by seeing that a range of religious beliefs and practices are ways to respond to the world around them.

Collective worship usually lasts between 10 and 15 minutes.

Please do:

- share one simple and clear point from which we can all leam. whatever our background
- reinforce the same idea using a variety of media e g pictures video story and/or music etc.
- use visual aids large enough to be seen by ail-preferably using PowerPoint. Small pictures, tiny writing and small objects may cause a loss of interest
- be friendly but not casual pupils will see you as a teacher
- try to involve pupils as much as possible letting them take some leadership where appropriate.
- ensure that pupils are ready for learning at the end of collective worship It is good to be lively as well as reflective, but if pupils are excited during collective worship you will be able to assist school staff by making sure they are calm before the end of it
- do feel free to ask staff for help in doing this well. We know how challenging it can be.

Please take care not to:

- undermine the school or staff in the remarks that you make (e.g. never say things like "We all know how awful school dinners are don't we?")
- use sexist or racist language or behaviour (ask girls to help and answer questions as much as boys)
- make or imply derogatory comments about other denominations, faiths, agnostics or atheists

Practical matters:

- Behaviour issues will be dealt with by members of staff so do not feel you have to deal with discipline
- It is part of our good practice to evaluate all that we do so we will from time to time share feedback with you on the worship that you lead. We welcome feedback from you on aspects of school life.